
 

 

Artificial Intelligence (AI) Prep                                                                     
Request for Proposals 

Release Date: August 8, 2025 
 

Addendum I 
 

 
The following is a list of questions submitted by prospective respondents and respective answers provided by 
the originating team: 

Q&A Matrix 
 

No. Question Answer 

1 
Could you please advise on where or how I can 
obtain the full details and related documents for 
this opportunity? 

This RFP and related documents are posted (and 
continue to be posted) on ESD website and NYS Contract 
Reporter website 

2 
Are colleges and universities eligible for the AI 
Prep RFP? 

Yes.  

3 

Does the curriculum need to result in college 
credits, or can this be developed as a 
certification program? 
 

The curriculum can be developed as a certification 
program. 

4 

Is ESD looking for responses from a particular 
type of organization (e.g., community colleges, 
training non-profits, consultancies)? 
 

No. Experience and the ability to perform the services 
described in the RFP are more important than the type 
of organization.  



 

 

No. Question Answer 

5 
Would partnerships with higher ed institutions 
or workforce boards strengthen an application? 
 

Partnerships are encouraged if doing so will create a 
proposal that meets the goals of the RFP, but one 
organization must be the lead for the proposed 
programming.  

6 

If a bidder partnered with a non-profit that was 
woman- or black-owned, could that count 
towards the MWBE requirement in this 
instance? 
 

No. Only participation by New York State-certified 
Minority or Women-owned Business Enterprises 
(MWBEs) will be credited toward the 30% MWBE 

participation goal.  
 
 

7 
How is ESD defining a “guaranteed placement”? 
 

The term “guaranteed placement” does not appear in 
the RFP.  

8 
Does ESD already have a view on the jobs they 
are trying to fill? 

There are no specific job titles identified but the RFP 
requires that jobs must be in AI or AI-related fields. 

9 
Does ESD have a list of preferred employer 
partners or sectors they want placements in, or 
should bidders source entirely? 

ESD does not have a preferred list. 

10 

Will bidders be held accountable for long-term 
outcomes (e.g., 6- or 12-month retention, wage 
growth)? 
 

Proposed long-term outcomes and the ability to secure 
them will be an important factor in the evaluation. 

11 

Is the goal to upskill 400 individuals or to build a 
sustainable solution that can scale to support 
more learners over time as AI skills & the AI-
influenced job market continue to evolve? 
 

The primary goal is to train individuals. However, 
demonstrating the ability to scale support to more 
learners over time will be viewed positively in 
applications.  



 

 

No. Question Answer 

12 
Does ESD expect a statewide footprint, or will 
preference be given to regional/local delivery? 
 

Ideally a statewide footprint, though it is understood 
that partnerships with employers may result in one 
region having stronger connections for job and 
internship opportunities. 

13 

We understand that the job outcome is the 
priority to deliver for learners, but how 
important is it that learners also leave with 
recognized credentials such as degrees or 
college credits, certifications, micro-certs, 
badges, etc.? 
 

Preference will be given for proposals that provide jobs 
in AI or AI-related fields. Industry-recognized credentials 
or certifications for those who complete the program 
should be included in proposals, if applicable.  

14 
How much demand does ESD see for this service 
in the learner market today? 
 

All available background information relevant to this RFP 
has been included in the posted materials. 

15 

Will there be ESD supported recruitment 
channels for learners to learn about the 
offering? 
 

No. 

16 

Does ESD wish to maintain and operate the tech 
platform (i.e., recruitment/marketing tech, LMS, 
student support services, communication 
platform, etc.) after the end of the offering or do 
they prefer a 3rd party continue to maintain the 
platform necessary to deliver? Or does the 
program end after the 400 individuals have been 
upskilled? 
 

ESD will not maintain or operate any tech platforms 
during or after the program. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

17 

Is the $4M across two tracks to cover everything 
(recruitment, stipends, development and 
delivery of the program, wraparound supports, 
placement, etc.)? (Section II. Overview) 

o What does ESD have in mind on 
stipend amount? 

o Does ESD have an amount in 
mind on what portion of the 
funds should be used for 
wraparound services? 

 

Yes, the $4M across two the tracks will cover everything.   
 
ESD does not have a prescribed amount for program 
stipends.  
 
ESD does not have a prescribed amount for program 
wraparound services.  

18 

It mentions OSWD seeks to award contracts to 
up to two (2) qualified program administrators. 
Under what scenarios would one vs two 
administrators be chosen (e.g., one covers track 
A, one covers track B)?  (Section II. Overview) 
 

A single applicant may apply to offer both tracks. 

19 
Is there any flexibility regarding the 30% MWBE 
participation goal in the RFP? (p. 17) 
 

Contractors must demonstrate Good Faith Efforts to 
achieve MWBE participation on the Contract. If a 
Contractor is unable to meet the 30% MWBE 
participation goal, the Contractor must submit a waiver 
request for the shortfall in MWBE utilization. 
Documentation of the Contractor’s Good Faith Efforts to 
achieve the goal must be included with the waiver 
request.  
 

20 

Will ESD consider accepting simple lump sum, 
firm fixed price proposals, up to the stated 
budget ceiling of $2 million per track, to 
complete the full requested scope of services? 
(Section VI.D Cost of Services) 

No.  

21 

Is the State open to alternative cost structures 
for firms that are unable to separate Personnel 
Services (PS) and Other Than Personnel Services 
(OTPS) as specified in the RFP? (Section VI.D 
Cost of Services) 
 

No.  



 

 

No. Question Answer 

22 

Can the experience of a subcontractor be used 
to satisfy the Eligibility Requirements stated in 
the RFP? (Section IV Scope of Work) 
 

Depending on the proposed program structure, yes. 

23 

Beyond the immediate contract, will ESD 
consider a 5-year plan that demonstrates long-
term ROI and sustainment, to ensure the 
program drives real, lasting impact? 
 

Plans beyond the immediate term can be discussed 
during the contracting process and are subject to the 
availability of funding. 

24 

How open is ESD to leveraging existing academic 
pathways that get you part of the way there, or 
wraparound services that exist that could be 
tapped and expanded to include these 400 
people, with additional pieces added to the mix? 
 

The proposer would need to demonstrate how 
leveraging existing academic pathways or wraparound 
services would effectively meet the primary goals of the 
RFP.  

25 

Given the pace of change in AI, how does ESD 
expect the offering to remain relevant over the 
course of the program? (Ie. the jobs & skills that 
initially get targeted today could be totally 
different than the jobs & skills that are in 
demand in 18 months.) 
 

Providers will be expected to keep their curriculum as 
current as possible in collaboration with industry.  
 

26 
Is ESD open to reshaping the RFP? 
 

ESD does not intend to reshape the RFP at this point. All 
updates to the RFP will be posted as Addendums to the 
RFP on ESD website and NYS Contact Reporter website. 

27 
What role will the state (ESD) play in marketing, 
recruitment, and retention of participants?   
 

ESD will not market, recruit, or retain participants during 
or after the program. 

28 

Would we be able to partner with NYS 
workforce development offices and other NYS 
and local agencies for recruitment and 
marketing in addition to colleges and 
universities? 
 

Yes.  



 

 

No. Question Answer 

29 
How does ESD Corp define a successful program 
and outcomes? 
 

A successful program will have met the program goals 
and objectives as detailed in the RFP. 

30 
Are we catering to a specific age demographic 
for each track? 
 

No.  

31 
Will the program manager be responsible for 
sourcing Tech/AI-related jobs and internships for 
participants? 

The proposer is responsible for cultivating and 
maintaining relationships with leading New York 
employers. ESD defers to the proposer on the roles and 
responsibilities of program staff.  

32 

Will Empire State Development share a list of 
preferred companies or existing partnerships to 
support internship and job placement 
opportunities? 

ESD does not have a preferred list. 

33 

Is there flexibility in the program timeline to 
begin formal programming in Fall 2026, so it 
aligns more closely with university schedules 
and the recruiting/application cycle? 

ESD defers to proposers on the timeline for 
programming, however rationale for timing should be 
included in proposal project plan.  

34 

Can ESD confirm whether bidders are able 
submit a proposal for only Track A or Track B 
respectively, or is bidding on both tracks 
required? 

 A single applicant is not required to bid for both tracks 
and can bid for either Track A or Track B.  

35 
Does the award preference go to programs that 
have 400 participants for each track, or 400 
participants across both Track A and B? 

Programs that can serve more than 400 applicants in 
either track will be prioritized. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

36 

If there are multiple applicants within a proposal 
(e.g., a prime subcontractor and additional 
subcontractors), do the insurance requirements 
apply to all that are within the application team? 

Yes, insurance requirements apply to all that are within 
the application team. The prime Contractor shall carry, 
and shall require each of its Subcontractors to carry, 
insurance types and minimum amounts as listed in 
section xiii. Changes to the types and minimum amounts 
for Subcontractors can be considered depending on the 
nature of the services to be performed under a sub 
consulting agreement. 
 

37 
Is 6% SDVOB participation a firm requirement 
for proposal consideration? 

No. If a Contractor is unable to meet the 6% SDVOB 
participation goal, the Contractor must submit a waiver 
request. Documentation of the Contractor’s Good Faith 
Efforts to achieve the goal must be included with the 
waiver request.  
 

38 

Is this program expected to be hybrid or 
remote? There's not mention of facility costs as 
acceptable expenses, or is that included in some 
other category? 
 

The program should consist of online courses in AI. ESD 
defers to proposers on whether the program will be 
hybrid or remote. Proposers should include all costs of 
services in their submission. 

39 

Cutting Edge AI skills" (Second line on page 2): 
Has NYS identified or defined the "cutting edge 
AI skills" employers are seeking? Or is it left to 
the proposer to identify and define the cutting-
edge AI skills?  

 

Providers will be expected to deliver “cutting edge AI 
skills” as determined by, and in collaboration with 
industry. 

40 

AI Internships and jobs (page 2): Has NY 
identified the AI internships and jobs that 
AI Prep aims to fill?  

 

There are no specific job titles identified but the RFP 
requires that jobs must be in AI or AI-related fields. 

41 

Leading NY tech companies (page 2): Does NYS 
have an inventory of the leading NY tech 
companies looking to hire people with AI skills 
that can be shared with proposers?  

 

The proposer is responsible for cultivating and 
maintaining relationships with leading New York 
employers. ESD does not have a preferred list. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

42 

Program Goals and Objectives (page 3): Does the 
minimum of 250 participants, with a preference 
of 400 + participants, apply to each track a 
proposer is applying for? In other words, if an 
organization is applying for both Track A and 
Track B, must it serve a minimum of 250 
participants per track, totaling a minimum of 
500 participants? 

 

Programs that can serve more than 400 applicants in 
either track will be prioritized. 

43 

Eligibility Requirements (page 4): Are SUNY 
campuses eligible to apply?   

 

Yes. 

44 

Cost Match (page 4): Is there an ideal % of cost 
matching applicants should aim for, and what 
qualifies as a cost-match?  

 

There is no cost-match requirement associated with this 
grant. However, applicants will receive additional points 
during the scoring process for cost-matching. For 
example, cash match and in-kind support can be 
included as demonstration of cost-match. 

45 

Page 1, Section: Important Notice – Are SUNY 
or CUNY institutions eligible to serve as program 
partners under this RFP? If so, what is the 
appropriate way for applicants to engage them 
during the restricted period of the Procurement 
Lobbying Law? 

 

SUNY or CUNY institutions are eligible to serve as 
program partners under this RFP. In this case, 
Procurement Lobbying Law pertains to the ESD 
personnel involved with the procuring services under 
this RFP. 

46 

Page 4–5, Section: II. OVERVIEW – For Track A: 
AI Prep 4 Internships and For Track B: AI Prep 4 
Jobs – Should outreach and recruitment be 
limited to specific regions (e.g., WNY, NYC), or is 
the expectation for statewide outreach and 
recruitment? 

 

AI Prep is a statewide program, however if the proposer 
seeks to serve a specific region this information should 
be included in the submission.  

47 

Page 5, Section: III. MWBE & SDVOB 
SUBCONTRACTOR INTEREST – May a firm 
request to be added to the list of MWBE & 
SDVOB subcontractors in addition to applying as 
a prime contractor? If so, is there a 
recommended format or process to indicate 
interest in both roles? 

 

A firm requesting inclusion on the list of interested 
MWBE and SDVOB subcontractors should send contact 
information and a copy of its NYS MWBE or SDVOB 

certification to AI.Prep@esd.ny.gov. 

mailto:AI.Prep@esd.ny.gov


 

 

No. Question Answer 

48 

Page 7, Section: C. Project Plan – Regarding 
internship and employment outcomes: Is ESD 
requiring formal letters of commitment from 
employers at the proposal stage, or will a 
detailed employer engagement strategy be 
sufficient? 

 

Letters from partner employers demonstrating their 
commitment to providing paid internships or full-time 
employment to program graduates are required for the 
Project Plan section of the RFP. 

49 

Page 7, Section: Cost Match – For cost-
matching, what types of contributions are most 
favorably considered—cash match, in-kind 
support (e.g., facilities, employer staff time), or 
access to existing resources? 

 

There is no cost-match requirement associated with this 
grant. However, applicants will receive additional points 
during the scoring process for cost-matching. For 
example, cash match and in-kind support can be 
included as demonstration of cost-match. 

50 

Page 7, Section: Data Collection – Will ESD 
provide a standard reporting system/platform 
for data submission, or will awardees be 
expected to design and maintain their own data 
collection and reporting system? 

 

ESD will provide a reporting system. Awardees are not 
expected to design or maintain the data collection and 
reporting system.  

51 

Page 9, Section: D. Cost of Services – Are there 
specific restrictions on the use of participant 
stipends, transportation support, childcare, or 
other wraparound services? 

 

No.  

52 

Page 9, Section: Metrics – Does ESD have 
baseline expectations for job placement and 
internship placement rates (e.g., percentage of 
graduates placed)? 

 

 

No, however proposers that have demonstrated ability 
to achieve an 80% completion rate for individuals and an 
80% job or internship placement rate will be prioritized.  

53 

Is it required that this program be offered 
online? 

 

The program should consist of online courses in AI. 



 

 

No. Question Answer 

54 

By “a training schedule that is immersive and 
can be delivered part-time or full-time” do you 
mean the programs must be flexible and offer 
both a part-time and full-time schedule of 
instruction? Or are you meaning that both types 
are acceptable and it’s up to the proposer? 

 

A part-time schedule or a full-time schedule are both 
acceptable. ESD defers to the proposer on how the 
program should be structured to meet the goals and 
objectives of the RFP.  

 


